UNITED NATIONS

FI FTH COW TTEE

27th meeting

hel d on

Wednesday, 13 Novenber 1996

T\( FI T SESSION & 3 p.m
f\()() ords New York

SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 27t h MEETI NG

Chai r man: M. SENGAE (Zi mbabwe)
| ater: M. ALOM (Bangl adesh)
(Vi ce- Chai r man)
| ater: M. SENGAE (Zi mbabwe)
( Chai r man)

Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Adninistrative and

Budgetary Questions: M. NMSELLE

CONTENTS

AGENDA | TEM 111: FI NANCI AL REPORTS AND AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS, AND
REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF AUDI TORS (conti nued)

AGENDA | TEM 141: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY- GENERAL ON THE ACTI VI TIES OF THE
OFFI CE OF | NTERNAL OVERSI GHT SERVI CES (conti nued)

AGENDA | TEM 140: ADM NI STRATI VE AND BUDGETARY ASPECTS OF THE FI NANCI NG OF THE
UNI TED NATI ONS PEACEKEEPI NG OPERATI ONS ( conti nued)

AGENDA | TEM 114: PROGRAMVE PLANNI NG (conti nued)

Proposed nediumtermplan for the period 1998-2001 (continued)

Programme 19. Human rights (continued)

iitU0 eUUPeu UO OYoulUs 6P UPeeUUsUDa” APeeUUsUPa0 OibYyu oU OUas YauUe 6ilU Distr. CENERAL
OUUa06YeU Pi O AUA0Ue Di 6iU tUyUU06UPa UPaUUegalu within one week of the date
of the publication éb 6iiU AiUUn ba 6iU EaaUUUOY iUUPeuO EiUsUaU iUUsUPE ePDA A C. 5/ 51/ SR 27
aA, k| 1aU6UG 606UPa0 ¢yOpO’ Oan UaUPedbeOsUu Ua O UPAP Pi 6iU eUUDeu’ 13 March 1997

UbeoUUUauYA ibe UOUl ADAAUGSUU” ORI G NAL: ENG.I SH

96- 82085 (E) /...



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

AGENDA | TEM 111: FI NANCI AL REPORTS AND AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS, AND
REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF AUDI TORS (continued) (A 49/368 and A/ 49/943; A/ 50/1004
and A/ 50/1005; A/51/302, A/51/305, A/51/432, A 51/467, A 51/486 and A/51/530 and
Corr.1)

1. M. KOSSY (Wkraine) said that his del egati on unreservedly supported the
recomendati ons contained in the reports of the Board of Auditors and the
recomendati ons of the Advisory Conmittee on Adm nistrative and Budgetary
Questions (ACABQ . UWkraine attached great inportance to the work of the Board,
whi ch hel ped to detect areas of weakness in the adm nistrative and budgetary
functioning of the United Nations and deficiencies in the internal oversight
system

2. VWil e overall budgetary control and the | evel of professional expertise had
i mproved, the deficiencies and problens in the adm nistrative and budgetary
sphere which had been identified by the Board in previous audits had persi sted.
M1 lions of dollars had been | ost in peacekeepi ng operations through waste,

m smanagenent and fraud. |In the areas of procurenent, inventory and contract
control, substantial amounts of various assets had been reported m ssing and

t here had been significant gaps in the acknow edgenent of property transferred
to other missions fromthe United Nations Transitional Authority in Canbodi a
(UNTAC), the United Nations Cbserver M ssion Uganda- Rwmanda (UNOMUR) and t he
United Nations Qperation in Somalia (UNOSOM I1).

3. H s del egation was surprised at the Board' s finding that letters of assist
were not admi nistered in accordance with the Organization's rules and
procedures. As the Advisory Commttee had requested, the Board shoul d conduct a
followup audit of its findings on the letters of assist in conjunction with its
next audit and duly report thereon to the General Assenbly.

4. Contract and inventory nmanagenent needed consi derabl e i nprovenent not only
i n peacekeepi ng operations but throughout the O ganization. Steps should
therefore be taken to expedite the establishnment of an assets-nanagenent system
to bal ance the requirenents of preparedness with cost-effectiveness and of
flexibility with full accountability. Ukraine also shared the concern expressed
by some Menber States over the Organization's |ack of proper procedures for

conpl eting the liquidation of major peacekeepi ng operations.

5. The system of procurenment was another area of concern. Despite the reforns
initiated by the Admnistration to inprove the procurement process, the goals
set out in General Assenbly resolution 49/216 C had still not been achieved.

Lack of effective planning was the mai n weakness of the current procurenent
system Equi pnent shi pped to peacekeepi ng nissions, for exanple, was often
ei ther not used or in such poor condition that extensive repairs were needed.
He hoped that the United Nations Devel opnent Programme (UNDP) and the United
Nations Children's Fund (UNI CEF) woul d heed the Advisory Comittee's
reconmendati ons concerning the proper nmanagenent of their funds. Despite the
General Assenbly's call in resolution 48/ 218 for personal accountability of
staff in the performance of their duties, very little had been done by the



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 3

adm ni strations concerned to hold their staff personally accountable, a
situation which nust be corrected.

6. Ef fective neasures nmust al so be taken to put an end to the w despread use
of ex post facto approvals for large contracts, the inviting of bids exclusively
frompre-qualified vendors without recourse to tender by advertisenent, and the
extension of contracts without bidding. Efforts should also be intensified to
achi eve a satisfactory geographical balance in the vendor roster.

7. H s del egati on wel conmed the steps taken by the Board of Auditors to devel op
cl ose cooperation with the Ofice of Internal Oversight Services and the
internal audit services of various organizations. The exchange of information
on issues of mutual interest between the Advisory Conmittee and the Joint

I nspection Unit (JIU was also highly appreciated. It was essential to ensure
adequat e coordination of audit activities in the organi zations of the United
Nations systemand to inplement nore effectively the recommendati ons of the
Board of Auditors. In that connection, the Board should indicate nore clearly
whi ch of its recomendati ons had not been inplenmented and whi ch viol ations of
rules and regul ations persisted. Finally, his delegation shared the view that
the procedures established for the inplenentation of the recommendati ons of the
Ofice of Internal Oversight Services could also be applied to those of the
Board of Auditors.

8. M. Al om (Bangl adesh), Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.

9. M. KELLY (lreland), speaking on behalf of the European Union and of

Bul garia, Cyprus, the Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Lithuania, Mlta,

Pol and, Ronani a, Sl ovakia and Sl ovenia, said that the reports of the Board

hi ghl i ghted the persistent problens and defects which existed in the financial
adm ni stration and managenent of the Organization. Wile comending the Board
for the quality of its reports, the European Uni on shared the Advisory
Conmittee's view that the Board's recomendati ons should be | ess general and
nore neasurable. The Board should al so be nore proactive in following up its
recomendati ons and shoul d pl ace greater enphasis on "val ue-for-noney"
reconmendati ons and on providi ng sonme indication of the savings that were likely
toresult fromthe inplenentation of its recomendati ons.

10. Gven the inportance of the Board's reports, it was all the nore
regrettabl e that their consideration continued to be hanpered by the late

subm ssi on of docunentation. Many of the reports and financial statenments had
been i ssued just days previously, thus leaving insufficient time for themto
receive due attention from Menber States. The European Union therefore fully
subscribed to the comments made by the Advisory Commttee in paragraphs 7, 12
and 13 of its report (A/51/533).

11. Regrettably, the main inpression gained fromreviewi ng the financia
reports and statements before the General Assenbly was of failure on the part of
the United Nations and its funds and progranmes to address recurring faults.

The persistence of problenms, such as poor procurenent planning, inadequate
attention to the internal audit function, and failure on the part of

i mpl ementing agencies to conply with agreenents, could only be interpreted as a
signal that the adm nistrations concerned were still failing to give due



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 4

priority to ensuring that agreed recommendati ons of the Board were fully
i npl enented. The Union therefore endorsed the Advisory Conmittee's coments on
the need to inprove significantly the followup to the Board' s reconmendati ons.

12. The European Union was al so greatly concerned about the continuing
deficiencies in the area of procurenent. |t had noted the response of the
Secretary-Ceneral to the Board's reconmendations on that subject and expected to
be kept regularly informed about the steps being taken to ensure that its
reconmendati ons were being fully inplenmented.

13. More generally, the European Union concurred with the Advisory Comittee
that many of the deficiencies highlighted were nmerely synptomatic of a wi der
problem nanely, the |lack of effective planning. It was precisely in order to
tackle that and other related problens, such as the |ack of transparency and
confidence in the current systemand the perceived | ack of balance in the

geogr aphi cal distribution of procurenent, that the reformof the procurenent
system had been initiated within the United Nations. The results of that
process, however, were yet to be seen. For its part, the European Union

remai ned commtted to working for the establishment of an efficient, responsive
and transparent procurenent system throughout the Organization. |In that regard,
t he successful efforts undertaken by the Wrld Food Programme in reforming its
procurenent system provi ded a useful exanple.

14. Arelated issue was the need for an effective policy on the managenent of
assets and inventory within the United Nations. Regrettably, the Secretary-
General 's proposals covered only one aspect of the problem nanely, the
nmanagenent of peacekeepi ng assets. Pending formal consideration by the Genera
Assenbly of those proposals, the Secretariat should nmake every effort to inprove
performance in that area and to avoid wasteful expenditure. Geater attention
shoul d be paid, for exanple, to ensuring that |iquidation tasks within a
peacekeepi ng m ssion were conpleted within a specified tine period, as
reconmended by the Board of Auditors.

15. The Board's report on peacekeepi ng highlighted the very serious probl em of
paynments made under protest by the Organization to host Governments in the
context of certain peacekeeping mssions. The European Union attached great

i nportance to host CGovernnents' concluding status-of-forces agreenents as

qui ckly as possible and conplying fully with their obligations under such
agreenent s.

16. The Union had noted with concern that the Board had been forced to qualify
its audit opinion on the financial statenents of six organizations in connection
wi th peacekeepi ng operations. Qualification of an audit opinion was a serious
matter and i mmedi ate steps should be taken to renedy the causes for the
qualification. The Union's views on the qualification entered on the financial
statenents of United Nations peacekeeping operations were in line with those
expressed by the Advisory Committee in paragraph 51 of its report, nanely, that
assessed contributions were collectable until the General Assenbly decided
otherwise. He therefore welconed the clarification by the Board that, in
qualifying its opinion, it was not in any way trying to suggest that |ong

out st andi ng assessed contributions receivabl e should be cancel | ed.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 5

17. The qualified opinion entered on the financial statenents of UNDP, the
United Nations Popul ation Fund (UNFPA), the United Nations International Drug
Control Programe (UNDCP) and the United Nations Environment Progranme (UNEP)
highlighted the failure of inplementing and executing agencies to conply fully
with funding and project agreenents. The European Union was particularly
concerned with regard to UNDP and fully supported the Board's recomendati ons
that the Programmre shoul d take i medi ate steps to inprove the nodalities for
national execution and to strengthen the nonitoring and eval uation skills of
Governnents. There was clearly a need for inproved oversight and control over

i mpl ementing partners and for greater pre-assessnent by the funds and programes
of capacity to inplement projects. The European Union therefore fully concurred
with the Advisory Commttee's coments and reconmendations on the nmatter
contained in paragraph 25 of its report.

18. Concerning the audit of the UNDP reserve for field acconmmodation, the

Eur opean Union noted with grave concern the failure of managenent oversight and
control over the proper application of the Financial Regulations and Rules. |If
not properly addressed, those problens could affect the credibility and i mage of
the United Nations worldw de.

19. Wth regard to the financial performance of the United Nations Habitat and
Hurmman Settl enents Foundation (UNHHSF), the European Uni on shared the Advisory
Committee's concern over the events which had given rise to a qualified audit
opi ni on and agreed that they denonstrated a very serious disregard for United
Nations procedures. The inappropriate decision to divert $900,000 fromthe
Foundation's funds to neet the financing requirenents of Habitat Il highlighted
the need for stricter control and nore effective managenent of trust funds
general ly, including disciplinary action in the case of m suse.

20. The audit of UNHHSF al so reconfirned the need for insisting that

adm nistrations conply fully with existing procedures and regul ations for the
hiring of consultants. Many of the shortcomings in that area coul d be

elim nated through proper planning and strict conpliance with the Financia
Rul es and Regul ati ons. The European Union therefore supported the Advisory
Committee's recommendation that the Secretariat should revert to the previous
practice of reporting regularly to the General Assenbly, through the Advisory
Committee, on the hiring of consultants.

21. On the issue of the personal accountability of staff nenbers in the
performance of their duties and the |ack of satisfactory renedies for dealing
with [ oss due to m smanagenment or inept progranme performance, the European

Uni on shared the view that greater individual accountability was called for. In
i nstances of |oss due to m smanagenent, pronpt action should be taken to
identify whether the | osses were attributable to general deficiencies in
operating procedures or to personal failure on the part of the staff menbers and
nmanagenent concerned to conply with established procedures. 1In the latter case,
appropriate disciplinary action should be taken by the Secretary-General and the
executive heads of funds and programes.

22. On the matter of the extension of the termof office of the nembers of the
Board, the European Union supported bringing the termof office into line with
the length of the budgetary cycle for reasons of efficiency and foll ow up.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 6

23. The Union wi shed to place on record its appreciation of the excellent work
whi ch the Board of Auditors was performng to inprove oversight of the United
Nations and its funds and programres and encouraged the Board to maintain and,
where possible, strengthen its liaison with the Ofice of Internal Oversight
Services and JIU in order to inprove the coordination of oversight in the United
Nations. It wi shed at the same tinme, however, to reaffirmthe inportance of

mai ntai ning a clear distinction between internal and external oversight.

24. M. Sengwe (Zinbabwe), Chairman, resuned the Chair.

AGENDA | TEM 141: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY- GENERAL ON THE ACTI VI TIES OF THE
OFFI CE OF | NTERNAL OVERSI GHT SERVI CES (continued) (A/50/945, A/ 50/1004 and
A/ 50/ 1005; A/51/302, A/51/305, A/51/432, A 51/467, A 51/486 and A/51/530 and
Corr.1)

25. Ms. INCERA (Costa Rica), speaking on behalf of the Goup 77 and China, said
that the strengthening of oversight and audit functions was a fundanental neans
of achieving the efficient, transparent and responsi bl e managenent of the

Organi zation's resources, particularly in the light of the current financial
crisis.

26. The cases of extravagance and irregularities which had been unearthed by

i nvestigations was a cause of concern for the Goup of 77 and China, not only
because of the material and nonetary | osses involved, but also and nore
significantly because of the considerabl e damage done to the Organization's

i mmge. The Goup of 77 and China therefore wished to ascertain whether the
Secretariat had been aware of all the irregularities uncovered; if so, for how
long it had been aware, and what neasures had been taken to stop or rectify the
irregularities; what nmeasures had been taken to remedy the situations nmade known
to the Secretariat through the publication of the report contained in docunent
Al 51/ 432; what neasures were proposed to avoid a recurrence of such cases; and
had responsi bility been determ ned and adm nistrative neasures taken agai nst

t hose responsi ble for the | osses incurred by the Organization

27. Those questions arose out of the follow ng specific cases: the acquisition
by the United Nations Peace Forces (UNPF) in Zagreb of 650 generators val ued at
$7.2 mllion which had either not been used or had been sent to other nissions
owing to the lack of a realistic needs assessnent; the transfer in the same

m ssi on of equi pnent worth over $35 million w thout proper accounting and the
lack of internal control over $50 million in reinmbursement to troop-contributing
countries, of which at |east $185,000 had been based upon fraudulent clains; in
the United Nations Mssion in Haiti (UNMH), the situation arising fromthe

| osses incurred by the forgoing of substantial pronpt paynment discounts to
vendors, which had cost the Organization $12.4 nmillion; also in UNMH, the
qguestions related to the shipping of equiprment identified as either unusable or
in poor condition, resulting in unnecessary costs of $328,000; the situation
that had arisen fromthe overpaynent of mi ssion subsistence all owances; the

shi ppi ng of 59 containers of expired food rations from UNOCSOMto UNAM R, whi ch
had incurred substantial unnecessary shipping costs and port charges and the
expenditure of $40,000 in connection with the bidding process; in the United
Nati ons Di sengagenment Cbserver Force (UNDOF), the alleged use by contractors of
United Nations trucks for smuggling purposes and the alleged m shandling of the



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 7

bi ddi ng process; the use of the printing shop in the United Nations O fice at
Ceneva for private jobs; overpaynent of Habitat and UNEP staff; the purchase of
an electronic security and card access control system for Headquarters in New
Yor k whi ch had never been installed and which had resulted in a net |oss of nore
than $1.3 nmillion

28. Lastly, the Goup of 77 and China would welcone clarification of the
relati onship between the Ofice of Internal Oversight Services and the
Effici ency Board.

29. M. OGAWA (Japan) expressed his delegation's satisfaction at the progress
made towards neeting the objectives set out in General Assenbly resol ution

48/ 218 B, by virtue of which the Ofice of Internal Oversight Services had been
established. G eater enphasis was now being placed on the followup to audit
recomendati ons and to nonitoring activities. The cooperation of the
departnments concerned was essential to the inplenentation of the Ofice's
recommendations, and it was therefore regrettable that certain departments had
not taken the recommended corrective actions.

30. He welconed the Ofice's efforts to coordinate its programe with those of

ot her oversight bodies, including the Board of External Auditors and the JIU

In order to avoid duplication and to ensure effective coordination, it mght be

necessary to review the existing arrangenents between the O fice and other

oversi ght bodies, particularly JIU, and to clearly define the terns of reference
for the specific activities of the two bodies.

31. His delegation had several questions, however, about the ability of the
Ofice of Internal Oversight Services to discharge its nmandate. The first was
whet her the establishment of the Ofice had nade a difference in the area of
oversight. It would also be useful to know whether the Ofice was nerely the
sum of the functions previously carried out by the various units which had been
responsi bl e for auditing and evaluating activities prior to its establishnent.
He woul d wel come the views of the Under-Secretary-General for Internal Oversight
Services on the matter

32. Secondly, his delegation believed that the Ofice's audit, inspection and
eval uation functions, while conceptually distinct, shared many conmon el enents.
The question therefore arose as to whether the current organi zati onal structure
of the Ofice enabled it to discharge its responsibilities as efficiently as
possi bl e.

33. Wiile his delegation appreciated the Ofice's efforts to identify specific
problens or irregularities within the United Nations system a nore inportant
objective for the Ofice was to identify the root cause of those synptons. In
his del egation's view, that root cause was the managenent systemand its
culture, and the next report of the Secretary-CGeneral on the Ofice's activities
shoul d accordingly contain a nore extensive treatnment of that fundanental issue.

34. In conclusion, the Ofice of Internal Oversight Services should not content
itself nerely with identifying and reporting on the problens and irregularities
that beset United Nations bodies. Rather, its nain task should be to provide

nmanagenment advice to every part of the United Nations system |t should becone



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 8

a proactive instead of a reactive body. Only then could it becone a true
instrument of reformwi thin the United Nations.

AGENDA | TEM 140: ADM NI STRATI VE AND BUDGETARY ASPECTS OF THE FI NANCI NG OF THE
UNI TED NATI ONS PEACEKEEPI NG OPERATI ONS (continued) (A 48/622 and A/ 48/912

A 49/ 654, A 49/906 and Corr.1 and A/ 49/936; A/ 50/684, A/50/797, A 50/907,

A/ 50/ 965, A/50/976, A/ 50/983, A/50/985, A/50/995, A/50/1009 and A/ 50/1012;

A/ 51/ 389 and A/ 51/646; A C 5/50/51; A/ C 5/51/8)

35. Ms. DUSCHNER (Canada), speaking on behalf of Australia, Canada and New
Zeal and, said that her delegation was pleased with the success of the new budget
cycle inplemented pursuant to General Assenbly resolution 49/233, since it had
stream ined the admnistrati ve and budgetary process for the financing of
peacekeeping. Wth respect to death and disability benefits for United Nations
peacekeepi ng troops, she favoured the concept of a global insurance scheme and
felt that there should be no direct contractual or statutory |ink between

i ndi vi dual menbers of mlitary contingents and the United Nations. Since each
Menber State had its own | egislation on conpensation for its soldiers, she
guesti oned whet her the proposed insurance schene, which Iimted rei nbursenents,
was in keeping with the principle, laid down in General Assenbly resol utions

49/ 233 and 50/ 223, that conpensation to the beneficiary should not be | ower than
rei mbursenment by the United Nations.

36. Wth respect to managenment review officers and roving finance officers, she
asked how their functions would differ fromthose of existing oversight

nechani sns, what time limts would be set for roving officers to carry out
tenporary functions as a stopgap neasure and whether such officers would be part
of the rapidly deployabl e m ssion headquarters. Wth respect to the
Peacekeepi ng Reserve Fund, she agreed that the Fund should contain the

equi val ent of at |east one nonth's peacekeepi ng expenditure. There was no need
to increase the mandated | evel of the Fund, but the current bal ance was well

bel ow that | evel because of unpaid contributions to the regular budget. She was
concerned about the excessive delays in reinbursements to troop-contributing
countries, which were attributable to the failure of sone Menber States to pay
their assessnents in full, on time and wi thout condition

37. Since areview of the rates of reinbursenment to the Governnents of troop-
contributing States was | ong overdue, she called upon the Secretariat to

conpl ete the new survey on troop costs and submt its report by the spring of
1997, and she urged troop contributors to respond pronptly to that survey. Wth
respect to the managenment of peacekeeping assets, she regretted the delay in the
subm ssion of the Secretary-General's reports on the cost estinmates and budget
of the United Nations Logistics Base in Brindisi, the cost-benefit analysis and
the North Atlantic Treaty Organi zation (NATO Codification System She agreed
with the Advisory Commttee (A/50/985, para. 22) that the Logistics Base could
not becone fully operational unless it had regular financing in the formof an
approved budget. Since it seened inappropriate to finance the Base fromthe
budgets of current peacekeeping missions, it mght be preferable to view the
Base as a mission and to provide it with its own assessed budget. That approach
woul d i ncrease transparency with respect to operating costs. Alternatively, the
Base could be regarded as a core peacekeeping activity and included in the
budget of the Departnent of Peacekeepi ng Operations.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 9

38. She shared the Advisory Committee's concerns about the absence of standards
for the disposal of peacekeeping assets (A/50/985, para. 17). A conprehensive
assets managenment strategy was essential in view of the magnitude of the current
task of |iquidating peacekeeping operations. She was particularly concerned
about the deterioration of stocks at the Logistics Base owing to insufficient
storage space and inappropriate handling. A detailed exam nation of the Base,
in the context of the wider need for a cost-effective and viable inventory and
asset control system should be undertaken, either by an expert consultant or by
an open-ended group of experts frominterested Menber States, set up along the
lines of the very effective ad hoc Wrking G oups on Contingent-Omed Equi prent.

39. Canada had been the first country to negotiate a contribution agreenment
with the United Nations, along the lines of the nodel agreenment contained in
docunment A/ 50/995. However, there were sone inconsistencies between the report
of the Phase IIl Wrking Goup (A C 5/49/70), which had been approved by the
General Assenbly, and the nodel agreenent; she wondered whether the latter woul d
be anended accordingly. Lastly, she called for a conprehensive review of the
speci al scal es of assessnments for peacekeeping.

40. M. Al om (Bangl adesh). Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.

41. M. KAMAL (Pakistan) said that the report of the Board of Auditors had

hi ghl i ght ed many probl ens which raised doubts about the Secretariat's
efficiency. Despite repeated requests, including the one contained in paragraph
13 of Ceneral Assenbly resolution 50/221 B, information vital to the issue under
consi deration, such as details on the use of |oaned officers in the Depart nent
of Peacekeepi ng Operations, had not yet been provided. He did not understand
why the Secretariat had chosen to disregard a specific instruction issued by the
Fifth Commttee, which should reiterate its position regarding the provision of
docunents and information in a tinely and efficient nmanner

42. Wth respect to death and disability benefits for peacekeepi ng troops,
uniformecriteria for conpensation nust be ensured, since the value placed on the
lives of United Nations peacekeepers could not depend on their country of

origin. In viewof the risks faced by those troops on a daily basis, and since
peacekeepi ng was one of the Organization's primary functions for the naintenance
of international peace and security, decisions on peacekeepi ng coul d not be
deferred just because the Secretariat was unable to provide information on time
or because of vested interests in favour of naintaining the status quo.
Regarding the Secretariat's previous indication that the direct cost, to the
United Nations budget, of travel and daily subsistence all owances in connection
with gratis mlitary officers had cone to $248,000 in 1995, he wi shed to know
the equivalent figure for officers in the Department of Peacekeepi ng Qperations
who had not been provided gratis by Governments.

43. M. KASANDA (Zanbia) recalled that the General Assenbly had approved by
consensus, in its resolution 46/206, the inclusion of Zanmbia in the list of

| east devel oped countries. The economc problens triggered in Zanbia by a
sudden drop in copper prices in 1974 had not yet been overcome, as shown by the
fact that the country's output had declined in five out of the |last six years.
Mor eover, government finances were in poor condition, as tax revenues in 1994



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 10

had represented only 10.6 per cent and non-tax revenues, only 0.4 per cent, of
the gross national product (G\P).

44. The Zanbi an CGovernment hoped to correct its macroeconon c i nbal ances by
stimulating investnent through sustained budget surpluses, which it intended to
achieve by curtailing its expenditure. Consequently, he asked the Comrittee to
shift Zanbia fromgroup Cto group Din the apportionnment of the expenses of the
United Nations rel ated to peacekeepi ng operations, with effect to 1 January
1997. He trusted that the Committee would take into account the precedent set
in that regard and the fact that nearly all of the other |east devel oped
countries were in group D. Although the change should, ideally, be nade with
effect from1l January 1992, when Zanbia had fornally beconme a | east devel oped
country, he would not insist that the decision should have retroactive effect,
in the interest of maintaining a forward-Iooking perspective.

45. In the context of the efforts of the Conmittee on Contributions and other

i ntergovernnmental bodies of the United Nations to harnoni ze the scal es of
assessnent for the regular and peacekeepi ng budgets, it was vitally inportant
that countries such as Zanbia shoul d be assessed at the proper rate. Zanbia had
pl ayed an active role in peacekeepi ng operations and hoped to continue to do so.
However, the fact that it was currently paying 50 per cent nmore than it should
be paying had created a situation that was unsustainable for the small Zanbi an
econony. He hoped that the Commttee woul d reach a decision on the natter by
the end of the current General Assenbly session

46. M. Sengwe (Zi nbabwe), Chairnman., resuned the Chair.

47. M. ZHQU Fei (China) said it was paradoxical, and a violation of the
principles of Article 100 of the Charter of the United Nations, to allow

of ficers who were on | oan to the Departnment of Peacekeeping Operations to remain
on the payrolls of their respective Governments while expecting that they woul d
not receive instructions fromthose sanme Governnents. The Organi zati on was not
a club for the rich, yet the practice of staffing the Departnent with officials
on loan from Governments had linmted the opportunities of officials from
devel opi ng countries to join that Departnent, since over 70 per cent of the

| oaned officers cane from devel oped countries. |In those circunstances, it was
legitimate to question the Departnent's inpartiality.

48. Hi s del egation had been surprised to | earn that sone of the | oaned officers
worked in sone of the nobst sensitive units, such as the Planning Division. He
asked for information on which positions in the Departnment were occupi ed by

| oaned officers, by category of country, and whether they enjoyed the sane
rights as budgeted officers. It had been argued that the use of |oaned officers
coul d reduce the Organization's financial burden, and it was true that some
countries, especially devel opi ng ones, had provided staff menbers to the
Secretariat on a non-reinbursabl e basis out of genuine concern for the

Organi zation's financial situation. However, there were other countries which
after accumul ating huge arrears in their assessed contributions and then nmaki ng
the fulfilnent of those obligations conditional on budget and personne
reductions, had placed their nationals in inportant departnments at the expense
of their own Governnents. That practice raised intriguing questions of notive.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 11

49. The expansion of the Departnent of Peacekeeping Operations nust abide by
the Charter and all other rel evant provisions, and China was, in principle,

agai nst the use of |oaned officers. Only by follow ng the procedure |aid down
in the Charter could the Departnent be staffed by officials who would faithfully
carry out the |ofty peacekeeping mssion of the United Nations. The urgency of
the issue nade it inperative to take a decision during the current session of
the CGeneral Assenbly.

50. M. NOUR (Egypt) said that he shared the concern of other del egati ons about
the increased use of officials fromoutside the Organization in the managenent
of the Secretariat in general and of peacekeeping operations in particular

That increase, which exceeded 80 per cent in the Departnment of Peacekeeping
Qperations, represented an alarmng trend in view of its consequences for
international civil service and for the geographical distribution of Secretariat
staff. He agreed with the Chinese delegation that the increased use of |oaned
of ficers rai sed questions about how the Secretariat performed its duties and
about the | oaned officers' accountability to the Admi nistration. He hoped that
the Secretariat would conplete its conprehensive report on the issue as soon as
possi bl e, since the problemwas related to other agenda itens as well, such as
human resour ces nanagenent.

51. M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) said that the agenda item under consideration

i nvol ved many | ong-standi ng i ssues which were of particular concern to his

del egation. He agreed with the Pakistani del egation that the Secretariat nust
follow up on CGeneral Assenbly resolution 48/ 226 C, paragraph 7, and 50/ 221 B,
par agraph 13, which requested information on the use of |oaned personnel in the
Depart ment of Peacekeepi ng Operations.

52. Ms. RODRI GUEZ ABASCAL (Cuba) said that she shared the views of Pakistan

Chi na, Egypt and Bangl adesh on the use of |oaned personnel in the Secretariat.
She was al arned by the increase in the use of such personnel, especially in the
Depart ment of Peacekeeping Operations, since it could lead to a | oss of
institutional nmemory in the Organization. |In fact, the use of |oaned personne
represented a stopgap solution to the problem of personnel shortages. |f Menber
States decided that they wanted the Organization to carry out certain
activities, they nust provide it with the necessary resources. The use of

| oaned personnel created inbal ances which were not only geographical, but also
political, since such personnel were provided al nost exclusively by devel oped
countries. Two years had el apsed since the General Assenbly's adoption of

resol ution 48/ 226 C, which had requested a report on the subject fromthe
Secretariat; she hoped that the Secretariat would give due priority to the issue
at the current session.

53. M. GRANT (United States of America), responding to the representative of
China, said that the United States was in arrears and provided mlitary officers
gratis, but that there was no notivation other than to help the United Nations
carry out effective and efficient peacekeeping activities in response to
requests fromthe Secretary-Ceneral. The recipient offices had been pl eased
with the officers seconded. It was not possible under the United States
budgetary systemsinply to reall ocate the noney earmarked for such officers and
apply it to the assessnment for the United Nations. |If, however, that United



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 12

States contribution was unwel cone, it could be rethought. Any debate on the
i ssues woul d not, however, be advanced by inplying inproper notivation

54. M. TAKASU (Controller) said that he regretted the failure to neet the
deadl i ne for issuance of the conprehensive report, which was now bei ng
finalized. Menber States would have an opportunity to review it before the end
of the session. The use of |oaned personnel, which had originated with the
requi renment for specialized expertise not available in the Secretariat, had
broadened into a general issue, creating a need for a major policy discussion
As a result of the delegation of authority, decisions to enploy such personne
had been taken by programre managers without central authority.

55. Two trust funds were nmanaged by the Departnent of Peacekeepi ng Operations.
The Trust Fund for |earned | esson activities stood at sonme $641, 000, provided by
three donors. There was also a Trust Fund for military officers on loan in
support of peacekeeping, which funded three officers, provided by Menber States,
and one nore of ficer had been pl edged.

56. Wth regard to travel expenditure in the Departnment, there were three
sources of funding: the regul ar budget, the peacekeepi ng support account and the
peacekeepi ng m ssion itself. Equival ences had been established between | oaned
mlitary officers and Secretariat positions, but such officers did not hold
seni or supervisory positions.

57. Ms. DUSCHNER (Canada) asked how nmuch noney each trust fund cont ai ned.

58. M. KAMAL (Pakistan) said that Menber States funded the activities of the
Organi zation, including in particular the paynment of staff nmenbers' salaries, in
t he expectation that the Secretariat would carry out their instructions. Wth
regard to | oaned officers, there had been a clear instruction to issue a report
not later than 1 Septenber 1996. The Secretariat had thus had a duty to prepare
and issue it but had failed to do so, without even an apology. The facile
comment that it was a difficult exercise was sinply not acceptable. His

del egati on woul d conclude that it mght not be able to pay staff nenbers who
coul d not deliver.

59. Wth regard to travel costs, what was needed was a conparative figure
bet ween | oaned and non-| oaned officers, to allow for a straightforward
conpari son.

60. M. SULAI MAN (Syrian Arab Republic) said that the Secretariat had been
requested some two years earlier to issue a detailed report on the use of |oaned
officers, and he failed to understand why that request had not been net. He
trusted that the report would contain the necessary information, including
nationality, profession, entry-on-duty dates and where such officers were

enpl oyed, on which to base an adequate di scussion

61. M. TAKASU (Controller) said that the information requested by the
Committee woul d be provided in the report.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 13

AGENDA | TEM 114: PROCRAMMVE PLANNI NG (continued) (A/51/6 and A/51/16 (Parts | and
1))

Proposed nediumtermplan for the period 1998-2001 (continued)

Programme 19. Human rights (continued)

62. M. FIGQJERA (Venezuel a) endorsed the comments made by the representatives
of the Non-Aligned Movenent and the Rio Group. She supported the restructuring
by the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Human Ri ghts and the establishnent
of three subordinate branches. There was no duplication in the new,
rationalized structure. There was a need for close cooperation between the
Centre for Human Rights and the O fice of the H gh Conmm ssioner. The provision
of support services by the latter did not entail new resources.

63. She reiterated the views of the Non-Aligned Myvenent with respect to
subparagraphs 19.3 (b) and (j). Reference should be made to bodies for the
pronotion and protection of human rights, and there should be a clear

di stinction between peacekeepi ng and humani tarian activities.

64. The views of the Third Commttee should have been presented in an officia
docunment, rather than an unprocessed conpil ation

65. M. FAGUNDES (Brazil) enphasized the inportance of activities in support of
the right to devel opment in the context of the Vienna Declaration

66. M. ASIRELIN (Indonesia) supported the views of Col onbia on behal f of the
Non- Al i gned Movenent and of W©Mal aysia as coordinator of the Wrking Goup on
human rights issues. He questioned the inclusion under subprograme 19.1 of
research and analysis, as that would dilute activities in support of the right
to devel opment, which should be carried out by a separate branch. There nust be
a programmatic approach to devel opnment, with staffing by conpetent personnel

67. Wth regard to subprogramme 19.3, having the same staff performboth fact-
finding and assi stance functions woul d, despite assurances to the contrary by
the H gh Commi ssioner, lead to a conflict of interest and woul d underm ne the
obj ectives of the programme. |In particular, he was concerned about the ability
to respond to requests for technical assistance and would |ike to see human
rights fact-finding and field activities included under subprogramme 19.2. He
al so had concerns regardi ng the proposed structure of the Centre for Human

Ri ghts, which seemed to be noving away fromthe intergovernmental review
process. It was essential to ensure that equitable geographical distribution
was mai nt ai ned.

68. M. MRMOHAMMAD (Islamc Republic of Iran) said that his del egation

wel coned the inclusion of crucial concerns under programme 19. There were,
however, inconsistencies with the Vienna Decl arati on and Progranme of Action
Not all relevant mandates were reflected in progranme 19, which required
anendnment. In particular, he supported the view expressed by the Goup of 77
and China that the Secretariat mnmust respect |egislative mandates and must not
i nclude elements that were far renoved fromintergovernnental agreements



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 14

69. Wth respect to subprogranme 19.1, his del egati on supported the statenent
by Col onbi a on behal f of the Non-Aligned Movenent, and agreed, in particular, on
the need for a separate subprogranme on the right to developnment. It was not

cl ear what share of resources would be allocated to that el enent under the
proposed structure.

70. Programme managers shoul d proceed on the basis of mandated programes. The
restructuring of human rights bodies did not constitute progranmre nmandates,
whi ch must be considered by the rel evant intergovernnmental organ

71. M. GREIVER (Uuguay) said that his del egati on endorsed United Nations
human rights activities, including the right to devel opnent, and supported the
i mportant work of the H gh Conm ssioner

72. M. ALOM (Bangl adesh) supported the statenents made on behal f of the G oup
of 77 and China and the Non-Aligned Movenent. Under subprogranmme 19.1, the
right to devel opment, instead of being linked with research and anal ysis, should
conprise a separate entity. Wth regard to subprograme 19.3, the intent of

advi sory services and technical cooperation was to help countries to devel op
nati onal plans. Fact-finding bodies, however, represented a conditional el enent
whose procedures might limt sovereignty. Wth respect to field activities,
there nust be a working mechanismto integrate such activities into the broad
framework of the United Nations system

73. M. X E Bouhua (China), endorsing the position of the Non-Aligned Mvenent,
said that his del egation attached great inportance to human rights but had been
concerned by the recent reforns of the United Nations human rights structure.
Programme 19 in the formcurrently before the Committee was deficient and shoul d
be revised. The Organization's human rights programes should conply with the
mandat es establi shed by the General Assenmbly and the rel evant intergovernmental
bodi es. They should be formulated with the consent of the full menbership of
the United Nations. |In particular, nore enphasis should be placed on the right
to devel opnent .

74. Hi s del egation shared the concerns voiced by the representative of Cuba
that the list of principles in paragraph 19.1 of docunent A/51/6 (Prog. 19) was
not exhaustive in so far as it did not contain all the principles articulated in
the Vienna Declaration and Programe of Action. Paragraph 19.2 contained the
phrase "to anticipate potential serious violations and react to violations"

whi ch needed to be reformulated so as to nake it clear precisely which United
Nati ons bodi es woul d react to abuses. Moreover, in speaking of the nature of
human rights violations, the programe used terms such as "serious" or "acute",
whi ch had not been used in the Vienna Decl aration and Progranme of Action

75. The Vienna Declaration had i ndeed nentioned the inclusion of a human rights
di nensi on i n peacekeeping and humanitarian activities, but exactly how such a

di nensi on shoul d be included woul d have to be deci ded through consultations

bet ween Menber States. In its present form the wording of paragraph 19. 3,
subparagraph (j), seemed to go beyond the provisions of the Vienna Declaration

76. Paragraph 19.3, subparagraph (m, referred to non-governnmenta
organi zations, grass-roots organi zations and civil society. H's delegation felt



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 15

that the use of such ternms was vague and inprecise. Mreover, he rem nded the
Conmittee that Econom c and Social Council resolution 1996/31 on non-

gover nent al organi zati ons contai ned no nention of grass-roots organizations or
civil society and that it would be necessary to adopt a text that governed or
regul ated the concepts of grass-roots organi zations and civil society.

77. Finally, his delegation shared the w despread m sgi vi ngs about conbi ni ng
advi sory services and technical cooperation with fact-finding procedures and
field activities, as proposed under subprograme 19. 3.

78. M. DVINIANIN (Russian Federation) said that his del egation attached great
i nportance to the human rights activities of the United Nations and woul d submt
specific proposals on programme 19 in informal consultations.

79. M. VARELA (Chile), endorsing the position of the Rro Goup, said that the
H gh Conmmi ssioner for Human Rights should be the focal point for the

Organi zation's efforts to pronmote and protect human rights. Human rights
activities should be given adequate resources in order to ensure that the

obj ectives agreed upon in the Vienna Declaration and Programe of Action were
achi eved.

80. Ms. LATERZA (Paraguay), endorsing the position of the Rio Goup, stressed

t he i nmportance which her del egation attached to the right to devel opment. The
wor k of the H gh Conmi ssioner and the Centre for Human Rights woul d be seriously
conprom sed if adequate resources were not made available for their work. Her
del egation believed that the main task of the Centre for Human Rights was to
facilitate the right to devel opnment at the regional |level. The regiona

conmi ssions were | eading the way in pronoting the right to devel opment within
the scope of their respective mandates. Programme 19 and all programmes having
an inpact on the work of the regional conm ssions should be adopted by the
General Assenbly.

81. M. INCERA (Costa Rica) reiterated her delegation's view that the right to
devel opnent should forma separate subprogranmme. It was the stated position of
the G oup of 77 and China that no programe shoul d be amended wi t hout the
approval of the General Assenbly. Nor should any restructuring exercise affect
exi sting programres.

82. M. KA (Senegal) said that restructuring should make the Centre for Human
Rights a nore effective tool and at the sane tine strengthen the role of

i ntergovernment al bodi es and non-governnental organizations in the human rights
field. Any restructuring exercise should squarely address the right to

devel opnent, which was a priority issue for devel oping countri es.

83. His del egation perceived a | ack of coherence and central focus in the
Organi zation's approach to the right to developnment. The sane charge of

di ffuseness could be levelled at other human rights programres whi ch were of
vital interest to devel oping countries. Nor was his del egati on happy about the
way in which subprograme 19.3 | unped together advisory services, technica

assi stance, fact-finding procedures and field activities.



A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 16

84. \While not opposed to restructuring per se, his delegation believed that any
such exerci se should be carried out in accordance with established procedures
and should benefit from Menmber States' input. It was astonishing that
restructuring had gone ahead wi thout taking account of the views of Menber
States. As stipulated by his mandate, the H gh Comm ssioner should submit any
restructuring proposals to the General Assenbly, the Econom c and Soci al Counci
and the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts.

85. His Government was concerned at the virtual disappearance of programres
focusing on economic and cultural rights and the right to devel opnment. A purely
functional approach to human rights posed a nmajor threat to certain programes

t hat benefited devel oping countries. He was al so concerned that the invol venent
of Governnments of devel oping countries and non-governnmental organi zations from

t hose countries woul d decline with the increased use of sophisticated data
managenent systens. Furthernore, his del egation was concerned about the

i mbal ance i n geographi cal representation occasioned by the restructuring of the
Centre for Human Rights. African staff nenbers, who generally occupied very
lowy positions in the hierarchy, would becone increasingly scarce.

86. It was the hope of his delegation that the restructuring exercise would
take account of all areas of human rights and strike a bal ance between the
interests of all countries concerned.

87. M. HO Tong Yen (Singapore) reiterated his delegation's support for the

H gh Conmi ssioner and the Centre for Human Ri ghts and appl auded efforts to
strengthen their mandates. Since CGeneral Assenbly resolution 50/214 had singl ed
out the right to devel opnent, that right should be the focus of the
restructuring effort. Unfortunately, the right to devel opnent had nerely been
subsunmed in a wi der programme. His delegation was al so puzzled by the division
of work within the Centre for Human Rights, for exanple it was uncl ear why
research had not been nmade a support service. The right to devel opment was
surely inmportant enough to justify a branch of its owmn within the Centre.

88. Wile his delegation did not wish to mcro-nmanage the Secretariat, it
neverthel ess believed that restructuring should be fornmulated in close
consultation with the rel evant intergovernnental bodies in cases where reform
af f ect ed mandat ed programmes.

89. M. ARAGON (Philippines), endorsing the positions of the Non-Aligned
Moverrent and the Group of 77 and China, conmended the efforts of the High

Conmi ssioner and the Centre for Human Rights and regretted that CPC had been
unabl e to reach consensus on programme 19. Her del egati on hoped that agreenent
coul d neverthel ess be reached to allow the H gh Comm ssioner and the Centre to
carry out their mandates.

90. M. GJITEROD (Norway), endorsing the position of the European Union, said
that a | ack of resources could hanper the vital work of the Centre for Human
Rights and the human rights treaty bodies. Al necessary neasures should
therefore be taken to enable the Organization's human rights actors to carry out
their functions in accordance with their mandates. H s delegation therefore
supported programme 19 in its present form




A C. 5/ 51/ SR. 27
Engl i sh
Page 17

91. M. ARM TAGE (Australia), also speaking on behalf of New Zeal and, endorsed
programme 19 in its present formand reiterated that the H gh Comm ssi oner and
the Centre for Human Ri ghts shoul d receive appropriate resources to enable them
to carry out their tasks effectively. The restructuring exercise was a
management issue; it was not a matter of policy governance for intergovernnental
bodi es.

92. M. REPASCH (United States of America) regretted that CPC had been unabl e
to reach consensus on programe 19. Hi s del egati on wel coned the restructuring
of the Centre for Human Ri ghts which had proceeded appropriately and correctly
in accordance with the rel evant nandates.

93. M. HANSON (Canada) said that it was the Secretary-Ceneral's prerogative to
restructure the Centre for Human Rights and that any such matter was entirely
for managenent to decide. H s delegation fully agreed with the functiona
approach that had been taken. The establishnent of appropriate functiona

subpr ogranmes and branches to carry out the functions of the Centre was the best
way to ensure appropriate progranmmatic follow up

94. The Vienna Declaration stated that all human rights were universal

i ndi visible, interdependent and interrelated. The right to devel opnent was al so
recogni zed as an integral human right. It was inportant not to fracture the
integral nature of human rights by singling out any one of its conponents.
Creating an entirely separate subprogramme for the right to devel opnent woul d
nean establishing individual subprogrammes for all human rights.

95. M. GODA (Japan) regretted that CPC had been unable to reach consensus on
programme 19. Hi s del egation supported the current version of programre 19 and
the efforts of the H gh Comm ssioner in restructuring the Centre for Human
Rights. The restructuring exercise would further inprove the quality of the
Centre's managenent, thus resulting in greater efficiency.

The neeting rose at 6.10 p.m




